CARR-819

Willis F. Tracey Mill Farm c. 1905
3969 Lineboro Road
Lineboro

The Willis F. Tracey Mill Farm is located on land that was part of Conrad
Kerlinger’s Mill Farm (see CARR-818). It appears that by the early twentieth century,
Willis Tracey was running the mill for John Tracey. He must have begun construction of
this house around 1904 or 1905. Noted in the tax assessments in 1907 is a new house valued
at $700.00. The house is a typical three-bay, center entrance building that was very popular
in Carroll County, especially after the Civil War. Most houses of this type seem to be found
in towns. This house also demonstrates the persistence of traditional designs into the
twentieth century despite the existence of readily available pattern books with an infinite
variety of new styles to influence home builders.
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1. Name

{indicate preferred name)

historic Willis F. Tracev Mill Farm

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 3969 Lineboro Road (MD 86)

—___not for publication

city, town Lineboro —X_ vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Carroll
- - -

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

— district- - public X occupied ___ agriculture —__ museum

_ X building(s) _X__ private ____ unoccupied ___ commercial ___ park

— structure — both , ___work in progress ___ educational X __ private residence

— site Public Acquisition Accessible ___entertainment - religious
... Object —_in process . yes: restricted —__government — scientific

—_ being considered ____yes: unrestricted —_ industrial — transportation
_x not applicable _Xpo ___military ____other:

o

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name

Robert J. Schmigel and Steven A. Rostkowski

street & number 3969 Lineboro Road

239-4579

telephone no.:

city, town Manchester

state and zip code y.. 1509 21102

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. = Courthouse Annex liber 1163
street & number 55 North Court Street folio 912
city, town Westminster state  Marvyland

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

_—

title

date —  federal ___state ___ _county ___ local
Jdepository for survey records

clty, town state




7. Descrlption Survey No. CARR-819

Condition Check one Check one

— excellent — deteriorated _X unaltered X original site

-X_good —— ruins ___ aitered — moved date of move
_fair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Summary: The Willis F. Tracey Mill Farm is located east of Lineboro Road, at the
intersection of Watertank Road. The house is a two-and-one-half-story, three-bay by
two-bay structure of all-stretcher bond brick on all four elevations. It has a rubble stone
foundation, 1/1 segmentally-arched windows, and a standing-seam metal gable roof. The
northwest (front) facade has a central entrance. The half-hipped-roof porch has brick
piers with wood lattice infill at the cellar level and four turned posts. There is a boxed
cornice with returns. The center bay has a gabled dormer. Southeast of the house is a
frame summer kitchen that butts against the roof of the rear porch and is perpendicular to
it. The summer kitchen is one-and-one-half stories, with German siding, and a standing-
seam metal gable roof. The northeast elevation has a one-story shed-roof porch. The
southeast elevation has an exposed brick fireplace flush with the siding of the wall.
North of the house is the frame ground barn with German siding. Southeast of the barn
is a frame springhouse with German siding. The roof is cantilevered about two feet on
the southwest end. The space below the cantilever has been enclosed with clapboards.

* Southeast of this springhouse is a frame poultry house with board-and-batten siding and a
shed roof. ‘

The Willis F. Tracey Mill Farm is located east of Lineboro Road, at the
intersection of Watertank Road. It is situated in the flat valley of the south branch of the
Gunpowder Falls, at the base of a low ridge. The brick house, built c. 1905 faces
toward the new Lineboro Road and beyond toward the Conrad Kerlinger Mill, which at
that later date was the Willis Tracey Mill. Lineboro Road originally snaked around to
the west of the mill and did not separate the house from the mill. Also on the property
are a summer kitchen, a small barn, a springhouse and a poultry house.

The house is a two-and-one-half-story, three-bay by two-bay structure of all-
stretcher bond brick on all four elevations. It has a rubble stone foundation, 1/1
segmentally-arched windows, with wood sills, and a standing-seam metal gable roof. The
northwest (front) facade has two segmentally-arched sash in the cellar covered by the
porch. There is a central entrance with a one-light transom and a later six-panel wood ‘
door. The half-hipped-roof porch has brick piers with wood lattice infill at the cellar
level and five steps on the northeast end. There are four turned posts. There is no
evidence that it ever had balusters, but the porch did have brackets once. The southwest
end of the porch is enclosed now with wood. There is a boxed cornice with returns.

The center bay has a gabled dormer on the roof with siding of wood shingles with
clipped corners. The dormer has a round-arched 9/1 sash. There is an internal brick
chimney on each end. Each chimney contains a copper lightning rod with glass ball.
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Description (continued) Section 7 Page 2

There is a matching lightning rod, with weather vane attached, on the peak of the central
dormer.

The cellar of the northeast elevation has a segmentally-arched four-light sash in
the north bay and a segmentally-arched door covered by a cellar bulkhead in the east bay.
The gable end has two small, segmentally-arched 1/1 sash. The southeast elevation has
two bays on the second story and three on the first, with an off-center entrance set to the
east of center. It has a one-light transom and a six-panel wood door. There is an altered
one-story, shed-roof porch across the first story. It has an inverted-V-seam-metal roof.
The southwest elevation matches the northeast, but with another four-light sash in place
of the cellar door.

Southeast of the house is a frame summer kitchen that butts against the roof of the
rear porch and is perpendicular to it. The summer kitchen is one-and-one-half stories,
with a rubble stone foundation, German siding with corner boards, and a standing-seam
metal gable roof. The northeast elevation has a 2/2 sash in the center and a vertical
board door to the north. There is a one-story, shed-roof porch with standing-seam metal
roof and new metal posts. The southeast elevation has an exposed brick fireplace flush
with the siding of the wall. The internal brick chimney is just east of the gable ridge.
The southwest elevation has one 2/2 sash. The siding extends northward beyond the end
of the summer kitchen and butts the house at the south corner, enclosing the southwest
end of the rear porch. There is a 2/2 sash set in this siding.

North of the house is the frame ground barn with German siding and corner
boards. It has a gable roof of standing-seam metal. Two roll-up garage doors have been
added to the southwest gable end, with a single 1/1 sash above. The southeast elevation
has a standing-seam-metal, shed-roof porch on metal posts. There is a vertical board
door to the south and a vertical board dutch door to the east. The northeast elevation has
two wood-louvered vents and an opening in the gable end. The northwest elevation has a
wood vent at each end, with an off-center opening that is boarded up and a vertical board
door above it.

Southeast of the barn is a frame springhouse on a stone foundation, with a
corrugated metal gable roof. It has German siding with corner boards. The roof is
cantilevered about two feet on the southwest end, and the gable end is filled with German
siding and a 1/1 sash. The space below the cantilever has been enclosed with clapboard
on the southwest and northwest sides. The southeast space below the cantilever has a
vertical board door and German siding. The southeast elevation of the springhouse has a
vertical board door in the center.
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Southeast of this springhouse is a frame poultry house with board-and-batten
siding and a corrugated metal shed roof. The southeast elevation has a vertical board
door on strap hinges to the south and two new vertical board doors. There is one three-

light sash on each of the other elevations.
KS/1h:7/16/92:descrip.23




8. Significance Survey No. CARR-819

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

—1400-1499 __ archeology-historic —conservation —  flaw — science

"7 1500-1599 _X_ agriculture —__economics — literature — sculpture

- -1600-1699 _X architecture — education — military , —— social/

— 1700-1799 ____ art —___engineering —___ music humanitarian’

—1800-1899 ____ commerce — exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater

— X 1900~ — communications —X_ industry — politics/government ___ transportation
—_invention — other (specify)

Specific dates ., 1905 Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: __ A B XC _ D

and/or '

Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national _ state Xlocal

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and

sy rt.
pee Summary: The Willis F. Tracey Mill Farm is located on land that was part of Conrad

Kerlinger’s Mill Farm (see CARR-818). It appears that by the early twentieth century,
Willis Tracey was running the mill for John Tracey. He must have begun construction of
this house around 1904 or 1905. Noted in the tax assessments in 1907 is a new house
valued at $700.00. The house is a typical three-bay, center entrance building that was
very popular in Carroll County, especially after the Civil War. Most houses of this type
seem to be found in towns. This house also demonstrates the persistence of traditional
designs into the twentieth century despite the existence of readily available pattem books
- with an infinite variety of new styles to influence home builders.

Historic Period Themes: Agriculture, Architecture, Industry

Geographic Organization: Piedmont

Chronological/Developmental Periods: Industrial/Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930
Resource Types: Small family farm; Rural vernacular

The Willis F. Tracey Mill Farm is located on land that was part of Conrad
Kerlinger’s Mill Farm (see CARR-818). When Martin Kroh sold the property in 1845,
the mill and stone house were separated. Mill owner George Grove was apparently
living elsewhere, and may have constructed a wood frame house in the vicinity of the
mill in the nineteenth century. John Tracey purchased the mill from George Grove’s
executor’s in 1879. It appears that by the early twentieth century, Willis Tracey was
running the mill for John Tracey. He must have begun construction of this house around
1904 or 1905, shortly before or shortly after the death of John Tracey. In 1906 he
purchased the mill property on which this house used to sit from John Tracey’s
executors. The fact is noted in the tax assessments in 1907. Also noted for that year is a
new house valued at $700.00. By 1910 an improvement worth $150.00 was added, but it
is not clear whether this was to the mill or the farm. In 1909, Willis Tracey bought
Conrad Kerlinger’s stone house, but sold it in 1918 to his son-in-law, Charles Folk, and
presumably remained in his new brick house. After Willis Tracey’s death, the mill and
this ~ouse also passed into the possession of Charles Folk. This house was separated off

- in 1960 and sold out of the family. o
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Significance (continued) Section 8 Page 2

The house is a typical three-bay, center entrance building that was very popular in
Carroll County throughout the nineteenth century and especially after the Civil War.
Most houses of this type seem to be found in towns. The central gable is a ubiquitous
form in the mid-Atlantic region found in conjunction with the I-house, and in Carroll
County, as in this particular example, it seems to have been used on the deeper, more
traditional, local three-room or double pile house. This house also demonstrates the
persistence of traditional designs into the twentieth century despite the existence of
readily available pattern books with an infinite variety of new styles to influence home
builders.

KS/1h:7/15/92:signif22 ken




9. Major Bibliographical References

Survey No.

CARR-819

Carroll County Land Records
Tax ASsessments 1896-1910

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property

.516 acres

Quadrangle name __Lineboro

UTM References
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Verbal boundary description and justification
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte  Kenneth M. Short, Historic Planner
organization Carroll County Department of Planning date  July 21, 1992
street & number 225 North Center Street telephone  (410) 857-2145

city or town

Westminster

state Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to:
Shaw House
21 State Circle

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

(301) 269-2438

Maryland Historical Trust
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